
	

	

 
 
 

WFC Executive Board Meeting AGENDA 
 

September 21, 2017   •   8:30-10:00 a.m. 
WorkForce Central   •   3640 S. Cedar St., Suite E Conference Room 
County Executive Bruce Dammeier presiding 

 
 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. PUBLIC COMMENT 

III. WDC UPDATE – Tim Owens 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Approve the August 17, 2017 Minutes 
B. Approve August 2017 Voucher Payments 

V. REGULAR AGENDA 

A. Approve and appropriate $1,881,565 of WIOA Title 1 Youth program funds from WA State 
Employment Security Department for the period of April 1, 2017 through June 30, 2019 
(Resolution No. 831) 

B. Approve and appropriate $209,063 of WIOA Title 1 Youth administrative funds from WA State 
Employment Security Department for the period of April 1, 2017 through June 30, 2019 
(Resolution No. 832) 

C. Approve and appropriate $228,612 of WIOA Title 1 Adult program funds from WA State 
Employment Security Department for the period of July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2019 
(Resolution No. 833) 

D. Approve and appropriate $25,401 of WIOA Title 1 Adult administrative funds from WA State 
Employment Security Department for the period of July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2019 
(Resolution No. 834) 

E. Approve and appropriate $353,499 of WIOA Title 1 Dislocated Worker program funds from WA 
State Employment Security Department for the period of July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2019 
(Resolution No. 835) 

F. Approve and appropriate $39,278 of WIOA Title 1 Dislocated Worker administrative funds from 
WA State Employment Security Department for the period of July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2019 
(Resolution No. 836) 



	

G. Approve Resolution to Participate in and be assessed by Association of Washington Cities 
Employee Benefit Trust (Resolution No. 837) 

H. Approve Adoption of an Interlocal Agreement between AWC and Tacoma Pierce County 
Employment and Training Consortium (dba WorkForce Central) 

I. Board Discussion: Determine system priorities that will be tracked on iDashboard tool 

J. Board Discussion: Transportation solutions  

VI. CEO REPORT 

A. Update on iron workers and CWA designation  

B. All WorkForce Central staff will participate in the Association of WA Cities healthcare/benefits plan 
as of October 1st 

C. FY18 Budget update 

D. Commuter Data Presentation – Caleb Kraai 

VII. OTHER BUSINESS 

VIII. ADJOURN 



	

	

	
	
	
	

WFC Executive Board Meeting MINUTES 

 
August 17, 2017   •   8:30-10:00 a.m. 
WorkForce Central   •   3640 S. Cedar St., Suite E Conference Room 
County Executive Bruce Dammeier presiding 

 
Attendees: Bruce Dammeier, Linda Nguyen, Doug Richardson, Tim Owens, Jan Adams 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

Bruce called the meeting to order at 8:31 a.m. 

II. PUBLIC COMMENT 
None. 

III. WDC UPDATE – Tim Owens 
No update since the July meeting was cancelled. 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Approve the July 20, 2017 Minutes 
B. Approve July 2017 Voucher Payments 
C. Approve Attachment A – Surplus List 
Motion to approve made by Doug; seconded by Tim.  Approved. 

V. REGULAR AGENDA 
A. Approve Title 1 PY17/FY18 Budget and Dashboard 

Motion to approve made by Tim; seconded by Doug.  Linda explained the differences with few 
changes from the previously presented budget.  Once 2018 appropriations are made she will present 
any changes if necessary.  Linda also briefly reviewed the Dashboard targets.  Approved 

B. Approve Fully Executed WIOA MOU 
Motion to approve made by Doug; seconded by Tim.  Linda gave a background and noted next steps.  
Approved 

VI. CEO Report 
A. Pacific NW Iron Workers Partnership Presentation 

Linda gave a background and shared results for the pre-apprenticeship program.  She noted some of 
the barriers as well as issues for continued program funding. 

B. iDashboard Presentation – What do you, as Chief Local Elected Officials, want to know about 
the Workforce development “system”?  How will we know the “system” is doing a good job? 
Linda previewed iDashboards a potential tool for reporting system performance.  Discussion 
continued on data collection and input by all the partners as well as the potential uses. 

C. Final PY17/FY18 obligation report 
Linda discussed the obligation report noting we are far ahead of the 80% rate for compliance. 



	

D. PERC Unit Clarification Petition 
Linda noted she received an email from Teamsters Local 117 that they have submitted to PERC a 
request to withdraw from representing workers at WorkForce Central since there is only one 
represented position. 

E. Brainstorm innovative solutions to transportation barriers 
There was discussion on what the barriers are and possible resolutions including using Uber.  Linda 
explained our current policy on providing Orca cards.  Bruce suggested holding this item for the next 
meeting when Mayor Strickland is able to attend.   

VII. OTHER BUSINESS 
None 

VIII. ADJOURN 
Motion to adjourn made by Tim; seconded by Doug.  Meeting adjourned at 9:09 

 





	

	

	
	
	
	
	

 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 831 
 
 

WA STATE EMPLOYMENT SECURITY DEPARTMENT 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY TACOMA-PIERCE CO 
UNTY EMPLOYMENT & TRAINING CONSORTIUM dba WORKFORCE CENTRAL: 

 
That the proper officers of the Tacoma-Pierce County Employment and Training 
Consortium dba WorkForce Central (WorkForce Central) be and they are hereby 
authorized and directed to execute for and on behalf of WorkForce Central a grant 
award agreement of $1,881,565 of WIOA Title 1 Youth program funds from WA State 
Employment Security Department for the period of April 1, 2017 through June 30, 
2019; and further that the Chief Financial Officer of WorkForce Central be and is 
hereby authorized and directed to deposit the funds received pursuant to such grant 
award in the Tacoma-Pierce County Employment and Training Consortium Fund. 
 
That there be and is hereby appropriated from the Tacoma-Pierce County 
Employment and Training Consortium Fund the sum of $1,881,565 of WIOA Title 1 
Youth program funds from WA State Employment Security Department for the period 
of April 1, 2017 through June 30, 2019 in accordance with the provisions and terms of 
the aforementioned grant agreements. 
 
 
Passed______________________ ______________________________ 
   Date    Chairman of Board 
	
	



	

	

	
	
	
	
	

 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 832 
 
 

WA STATE EMPLOYMENT SECURITY DEPARTMENT 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY TACOMA-PIERCE COUNTY EMPLOYMENT & TRAINING 
CONSORTIUM dba WORKFORCE CENTRAL: 

 
That the proper officers of the Tacoma-Pierce County Employment and Training 
Consortium dba WorkForce Central (WorkForce Central) be and they are hereby 
authorized and directed to execute for and on behalf of WorkForce Central a grant 
award agreement of $209,063 of WIOA Title 1 Youth administrative funds from WA 
State Employment Security Department for the period of April 1, 2017 through June 
30, 2019; and further that the Chief Financial Officer of WorkForce Central be and is 
hereby authorized and directed to deposit the funds received pursuant to such grant 
award in the Tacoma-Pierce County Employment and Training Consortium Fund. 
 
That there be and is hereby appropriated from the Tacoma-Pierce County 
Employment and Training Consortium Fund the sum of $209,063 of WIOA Title 1 
Youth administrative funds from WA State Employment Security Department for the 
period of April 1, 2017 through June 30, 2019 in accordance with the provisions and 
terms of the aforementioned grant agreements. 
 
 
Passed______________________ ______________________________ 
   Date    Chairman of Board 
	
	



	

	

	
	
	
	
	

 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 833 
 
 

WA STATE EMPLOYMENT SECURITY DEPARTMENT 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY TACOMA-PIERCE COUNTY EMPLOYMENT & TRAINING 
CONSORTIUM dba WORKFORCE CENTRAL: 

 
That the proper officers of the Tacoma-Pierce County Employment and Training 
Consortium dba WorkForce Central (WorkForce Central) be and they are hereby 
authorized and directed to execute for and on behalf of WorkForce Central a grant 
award agreement of $228,612 of WIOA Title 1 Adult program funds from WA State 
Employment Security Department for the period of July 1, 2017 through June 30, 
2019; and further that the Chief Financial Officer of WorkForce Central be and is 
hereby authorized and directed to deposit the funds received pursuant to such grant 
award in the Tacoma-Pierce County Employment and Training Consortium Fund. 
 
That there be and is hereby appropriated from the Tacoma-Pierce County 
Employment and Training Consortium Fund the sum of $228,612 of WIOA Title 1 Adult 
program funds from WA State Employment Security Department for the period of July 
1, 2017 through June 30, 2019 in accordance with the provisions and terms of the 
aforementioned grant agreements. 
 
 
Passed______________________ ______________________________ 
   Date    Chairman of Board 
	
	



	

	

	
	
	
	
	

 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 834 
 
 

WA STATE EMPLOYMENT SECURITY DEPARTMENT 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY TACOMA-PIERCE COUNTY EMPLOYMENT & TRAINING 
CONSORTIUM dba WORKFORCE CENTRAL: 

 
That the proper officers of the Tacoma-Pierce County Employment and Training 
Consortium dba WorkForce Central (WorkForce Central) be and they are hereby 
authorized and directed to execute for and on behalf of WorkForce Central a grant 
award agreement of $25,401 of WIOA Title 1 Adult administrative funds from WA State 
Employment Security Department for the period of July 1, 2017 through June 30, 
2019; and further that the Chief Financial Officer of WorkForce Central be and is 
hereby authorized and directed to deposit the funds received pursuant to such grant 
award in the Tacoma-Pierce County Employment and Training Consortium Fund. 
 
That there be and is hereby appropriated from the Tacoma-Pierce County 
Employment and Training Consortium Fund the sum of $25,401 of WIOA Title 1 Adult 
administrative funds from WA State Employment Security Department for the period 
of July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2019 in accordance with the provisions and terms of 
the aforementioned grant agreements. 
 
 
Passed______________________ ______________________________ 
   Date    Chairman of Board 
	
	



	

	

	
	
	
	
	

 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 835 
 
 

WA STATE EMPLOYMENT SECURITY DEPARTMENT 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY TACOMA-PIERCE COUNTY EMPLOYMENT & TRAINING 
CONSORTIUM dba WORKFORCE CENTRAL: 

 
That the proper officers of the Tacoma-Pierce County Employment and Training 
Consortium dba WorkForce Central (WorkForce Central) be and they are hereby 
authorized and directed to execute for and on behalf of WorkForce Central a grant 
award agreement of $353,499 of WIOA Title 1 Dislocated Worker program funds from 
WA State Employment Security Department for the period of July 1, 2017 through 
June 30, 2019; and further that the Chief Financial Officer of WorkForce Central be 
and is hereby authorized and directed to deposit the funds received pursuant to such 
grant award in the Tacoma-Pierce County Employment and Training Consortium 
Fund. 
 
That there be and is hereby appropriated from the Tacoma-Pierce County 
Employment and Training Consortium Fund the sum of $353,499 of WIOA Title 1 
Dislocated Worker program funds from WA State Employment Security Department 
for the period of July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2019 in accordance with the provisions 
and terms of the aforementioned grant agreements. 
 
 
Passed______________________ ______________________________ 
   Date    Chairman of Board 
	
	



	

	

	
	
	
	
	

 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 836 
 
 

WA STATE EMPLOYMENT SECURITY DEPARTMENT 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY TACOMA-PIERCE COUNTY EMPLOYMENT & TRAINING 
CONSORTIUM dba WORKFORCE CENTRAL: 

 
That the proper officers of the Tacoma-Pierce County Employment and Training 
Consortium dba WorkForce Central (WorkForce Central) be and they are hereby 
authorized and directed to execute for and on behalf of WorkForce Central a grant 
award agreement of $39,278 of WIOA Title 1 Dislocated Worker administrative funds 
from WA State Employment Security Department for the period of July 1, 2017 through 
June 30, 2019; and further that the Chief Financial Officer of WorkForce Central be 
and is hereby authorized and directed to deposit the funds received pursuant to such 
grant award in the Tacoma-Pierce County Employment and Training Consortium 
Fund. 
 
That there be and is hereby appropriated from the Tacoma-Pierce County 
Employment and Training Consortium Fund the sum of $39,278 of WIOA Title 1 
Dislocated Worker administrative funds from WA State Employment Security 
Department for the period of July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2019 in accordance with 
the provisions and terms of the aforementioned grant agreements. 
 
 
Passed______________________ ______________________________ 
   Date    Chairman of Board 
	
	



74235241.5 0053138-00001 1 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 837 
 

September 21, 2017 
 

 WHEREAS, the Association of Washington Cities Employee Benefit Trust (the “Trust”) 
is an entity to which contributions by cities and towns and non-city entities organized and 
existing under the Constitution or laws of the State of Washington and who are members of the 
Trust (“Participating Cities and Towns,” and “Participating Non-City Entities”) and their 
employees can be paid and through which the Board of Trustees of the Trust (“Trustees”) 
provides one or more insured health and welfare benefit plans or programs to Participating Cities 
and Towns’ and Non-City Entities’ employees, their dependents and other beneficiaries 
(“Beneficiaries”), on whose behalf the contributions were paid; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Trust qualifies as a voluntary employee beneficiary association within 
the meaning of Section 501(c)(9) of the Internal Revenue Code, providing for the payment of 
life, sick, accident or other benefits to Beneficiaries; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the Trust and Participating Cities and Towns and Non-City Entities have 
determined that it is in the best interest of Participating Cities and Towns and Non-City Entities 
to jointly self-insure certain health benefit plans and programs for Beneficiaries through a 
designated account within the Trust, while at the same time having the Trust continue as the 
entity to which other insured health and welfare benefit program contributions are paid and 
through which insured health and welfare benefit plans and programs are provided to 
Beneficiaries; and  
 
 WHEREAS, it appears economically feasible and practical for the parties to do so; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 48.62 RCW provides that two or more local government entities 
may, by Interlocal agreement under chapter 39.34 RCW, jointly self-insure health benefit plans 
and programs, and/or jointly hire risk management services for such plans or programs by any 
one or more of certain specified methods; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Association of Washington Cities Employee Benefit Trust Interlocal 
Agreement (the “Interlocal Agreement”) attached hereto creates a joint self-insured health and 
welfare benefit program (the “Health Care Program”) to be administered by the Trustees for the 
purposes of providing self-insured health benefits to Beneficiaries; and  

 
WHEREAS, WAC 200-110-030 requires every local government entity participating in a 

joint self-insurance health and welfare benefit program to adopt such program by resolution; and 
 

WHEREAS, Chapter 48.62 requires Health Care Program assets to be managed 
consistent with existing authority over use of municipal funds in RCW 35.39.030.  The Trust will 
manage Health Care Program reserves in compliance with Chapter 48.62 RCW; RCW 
35.39.030, and the Health Care Program Investment Policy; and  



74235241.5 0053138-00001 2 

 
WHEREAS, all premium contributions for use in the Health Care Program are deposited 

into a designated account within the Trust, the Health Care Program Account (the “HCP 
Account”), and the HCP Account represents a pool of funds that is independent of all other Trust 
or AWC funds; and 

 
WHERAS, the Trust intends to manage the HCP Account assets in compliance with 

federal and state laws and the Interlocal Agreement; and  
 
WHEREAS, WorkForce Central believes it is in the best interest of the Health Care 

Program to allow the Trust to manage the HCP Account; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE RESOLVED, that the Interlocal Agreement creating the Health 
Care Program is hereby adopted. 
 
 RESOLVED, that by adopting such Agreement, WorkForce Central acknowledges that it 
shall be subject to assessments as required by the Health Care Program. 
 
  
__________________________________________ 
By: 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________________ 
 
Dated:_____________________________________ 
 





























Commute Project



Methodology: Commuters

• From zip codes in Pierce county  To 
zip codes in other counties

• Aggregated zip codes into 
municipalities (roughly)

• Estimates of who from Pierce is 
traveling where

Lakewood



To Seattle



Methodology: Industry Composition
• Industry snapshot of any region
• Calculate proportions (%)
• Calculate for municipalities in 
each county 



Commute Estimates



Commute Estimates



Master Spreadsheet



Keep In Mind

• LODES and ACS do not include DOD data
• Military commuting not a part of this spreadsheet

• Working on it

• Small sample size regions will be aggregated 
to mitigate sampling error

• Later drafts will include occupation statistics 
and income comparison


